ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMMERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
Cct ober 7, 2014
1:11 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representati ve M ke Chenaul t
Representative Charisse Ml lett
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Craig Johnson

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Bob Herron
COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  PATI ENT PROTECTI ON AND AFFORDABLE CARE ACT
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

LORI W NG HElI ER, Director

D vi si on of |nsurance

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity, and Econoni c Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act (ACA).

BECKY HULTBERG, President and CEO

Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association ( ASHNHA)
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the ACA

SHEELA TALLMAN, Seni or Manager, Legislative Policy
Premera Bl ue Cross

Seattl e, Washington

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the ACA

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- Oct ober 7, 2014



JASON GOOTEE, Regi onal Manager

Mbda Heal th, Al aska

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced his supervisor.

KRAI G ANDERSQN, Senior Vice President and Chief Actuary
Moda Heal t h

Portl and, Oregon

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the ACA

VI NCE O SHEA, Vice President

Paci fic Seaf ood Processors Associ ation (PSPA)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the ACA

Bl LL STREUR, Conm ssi oner

Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the ACA.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:11: 39 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:11 p.m Represent ati ves
Rei nbol d, Josephson, Saddler, Johnson, and O son were present at
the call to order. Representative Sam Kito IlIl was on |ine.

Representatives MIlett and Chenault arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

PRESENTATI ON: Patient Protection and Affordabl e Care Act

1:12: 30 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the only order of business would be a
di scussion related to the federal Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act (ACA) and the inpact of rate increases.
Wen the ACA was rolled out, he said, people were told that if
they liked their doctors they could keep them and if people
liked their health care plans, they could keep them The ACA
would also Jlower healthcare <costs for famlies and for
busi nesses, he stated. He said if he was still in the insurance
busi ness, "and | sold a product like that, 1'd probably be in
jail for any nunber of violations of the insurance statutes.”
He added that he is trying not to let his bias show.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- Oct ober 7, 2014



1:14: 37 PM

LORI W NG HEI ER, Director, Division of | nsurance (DA),
Departnment of Commerce, Community, and Econom c Devel opnent
(DCCED), said there have been many statenents made about the
DA . Its mssion is to regulate the insurance industry to
protect Al aska consuners. She said that sonetines decisions
need to be made and issues need to be resolved that result in
"no clear winner" and that the division needs to make a deci sion
after reviewi ng hundreds of pages of data and hol ding countl ess
neetings to have a viable, financial, secure product for Al aska
consuners that is available today and tonorrow. | nterestingly,
"sonetinmes our hands are tied [and] our creativity is stifled by
a statute or regulation or court decision that dictates how we
nmeet our mssion.” She noted that on March 23, 2010, President
hama signed a sweeping piece of legislation called the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA) to provide affordable
heal t hcare insurance to those who were uninsured and to expand
certain benefits to those that were already insured.

1:18: 36 PM

M5. WNG HEIER showed a tinmeline on slide 4 of her PowerPoint
present ati on. In the fall of 2013, the insurance industry
cancel ed health insurance for five mllion Americans. She spoke
of shock and dismay, and it was unsettling for stakehol ders and
for her division. Approximately 5,500 of the consuners were in

Al aska, she expl ai ned. These consuners were to go from a
nonconpliant to a conpliant plan, and people were shocked, she
said. In Cctober, open enrollnment began and there were problens
with the website, she reported, and repeated attenpts to log in
caused distress. In Novenber, people were notified that they
could keep their insurance for a year, through 2014, but that
del ayed the individual enrollnent. The "SHOP option" was also

del ayed for one year [Snall Business Health Options Progran,
she stat ed. So the question given to the state was: Wuld you
al | ow your consuners to keep their current benefits for a year?

M5. WNGHEIER said that after sone analysis, DA issued
Bulletin 1309, and "it did not, per se, allow the transition,
but what it did allow was for the insurers to nmake a choice in
their business decisions to cancel and rewite the current
i nsurance policies effective Decenber 31 for a period of one
year." She said if a policy was to expire in April, it would
have been canceled on Decenber 31, 2013, and would now expire
Decenber 31, 2014, and it wuld continue to be a non-
grandfathered plan and out of the ACA She said this was

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- Cct ober 7, 2014



distressing to consumers as they did not know if they were
supposed to enroll or not, and it created anxiety for the
insurers too as they had to adjust to the new plan. She said it
was upsetting for nmany. The progress was halted for the tine
being, and the issues continued with the ACA website through the
spring of 2014, she explained. In March, President Obama
announced that those who like their insurance would be able to
keep it, and current plans, at the direction of the state, could
stay in place until OCctober, 2016, she added. She noted that
two insurers, Prenmera and Mdda, kept their plans in place. She
conti nued:

They were given notice, and, again, this is their
decision, if they keep those plans. The Division of
| nsurance can only allow it; we cannot dictate it.
It's their business decision. Under Bulletin 1403
they received a notice that they had to make a
decision if they were going to continue the
nonconpliant plans. W felt it was inmportant to do so
because we realize the inpact of the premuns in ACA
conpliant plans, and we hope to delay it as long we
could for those that we coul d.

M5. WNG HEIER questioned if the division nmade the right
decision, but she feels that it did because it gave about 5,000
Al askans the choice to stay out of the ACA conpliant plans
unl ess they preferred them

1:23: 21 PM

M5. WNGHEIER noted that, in an attenpt to keep costs to a
m ni mum for consuners, on June 2, the division petitioned Health
and Human Services to opt out of "SHOP' (for small business
owners) for one year. The ACA, she believes, allows for the
i ndi vi dual enployee of snmall businesses to get a set anmount of
nmoney to go into the marketplace to buy his or her own plan.
She said she heard from several small business owners who did
not like that concept because of their concern wth the
possibility of admnistering multiple plans in one snmal
business. So, the division did the petition and was granted the
authority to opt out of SHOP for one year.

1:24:22 PM
M5. W NG HEl ER stated that people who had insurance on March 23,

2010, are grandfathered in and not subject to the mmpjority of
the ACA, but they could benefit fromthe ACA program of insuring

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- Oct ober 7, 2014



their children up to the age of 26. The non-grandfathered (or
nonconpl i ant) plans were purchased between Mrch 23, 2010, and
January 1, 2014, she said, and they were to becone conpliant by
2014. Those were also the plans that the insurance conpanies
mai |l ed out a notice of cancelation (but then reinstated) and can
be kept until October 1, 2016, if the insurer allows for it, she
expl ai ned. She said January 1, 2014, [begins the] conpliance-
qualified health plans. "Those are the three buckets that we're
tal ki ng about," she added.

1: 26: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how many Al askans have the non-
gr andf at hered pl ans.

M5. WNGHEIER said page 8 does not talk about the Ilarge
enpl oyers, "but it gives you an estimate of approximtely 22,000
in the individual market in 2014." For the grandfathered
[pl ans], Prenera had about 2,800 in individual markets and about
4,600 in the small groups. Mbdda does not have any grandfathered
pl ans. She said to | ook at her slide 9.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked about slide 5. At the tinme of
the signing of the ACA if someone had a policy it was
grandf at hered, so they got to keep what they had.

M5. WNG HElI ER agreed, but there were sone nodifications, such
as the children could remain on their parents' insurance unti

the age of 26, as well as other benefits to those wth
grandfathered plans, "but not the significant--the essential
health benefits and others that are in the ACA conpliant plans."
She turned to slide 6 from 2012 and 2013, which shows al

insurers in Al aska, but it does not show the self-insured. She
said she has focused on Prenera and Mbda, because they are the
two insurers that "we have released the 2015 rates for and they
are the two insurers that offer products to Al askan consunmers on

the Federal Facilitated Marketplace." She noted that they had
about 75 percent of the narket. In 2013, the nunbers do not
change that nuch, she added. She turned to slide 8, "these are
all insurers--individual and small group in 2014." It includes

the grandfathered plans, non-grandfathered plans, and the ACA
conpliant plans, but the nunbers can change from day to day, she
noted. Slide 9 slices the nunbers a little bit differently with
regard to what Prenmera and Mda have, as far as individual
mar kets, small group markets, grandfathered, non-grandfathered,
and ACA conpliant, she expl ai ned.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- Cct ober 7, 2014



1: 31: 25 PM

M5. WNG HEIER said her point is to show that if she added up
all of the nunbers for all of the individuals that she has, and
if she added in the 6,000 that she thinks may be out there that
have yet to enroll, the sum is 28, 828. Alaska is a snal
mar ket, and not hing about the ACA is going to change that. She
said Al aska has extrenely high health care costs, and there is
not enough in the pool to spread the costs of the clains that
were seen in 2014 and prior years and nake it affordable.
Looking at other states, the marketplace enrollnent of ACA
qualified plans in 2014 was about 8 mllion nationw de, she
reported, and sone states had a decrease in rates and ot hers had
rates that did not go up. She said, "California enrolled 1.4
mllion; Idaho, 76; [and] Washington State, 163. Sonme states
had a little |less than us. Hawai i, for one, had about 9, 000.
Sout h Dakota did not have nmany--about 13, and North Dakota, 10."
She added that those states have a |ower cost of health care
and, perhaps, nore access to sone health care.

1:33:34 PM
M5. W NG HEI ER presented a slide to show where Alaska falls with

enrol | ment [expectations], and it is "pretty much right on
target” for what CMS, Avalere, and what the Kaiser Famly

Foundati on shows us. Alaska is a little over 16,000 in all
mar kets for enrollnment, she stated. No one knows exactly how
many uninsured there were in Alaska, but this is the closest
nunber she has. She said there has been a lot of discussion
over the federal exchange and the rate-review grants and why the
state made the decision that it did. Regarding the federal
exchange grants, the federal government awarded close to $4
billion to 49 states to study--and in sone cases, design and

i npl enent--a state-based exchange, and of those 49 states, 39
elected to participate in the federal exchange, "as Al aska did

from the beginning.” Recent data shows that in addition to the
$4 billion fromthe federal government, there was close to $3.5
billion spent by the states thenselves, she stated. I n Hawai i

the average cost per enrollee of their exchange is $23,899, and
for California it is $758. California has sone of the highest
enrol | ment nunbers of any state, she added.

1:34: 15 PM
M5. WNGHEIER said Alaska is part of the FFM [Federally

Facilitated Marketplace], and the average cost is $12,890 per
enrol | ee. The lowest is Florida at $76 and North Dakota is

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- Cct ober 7, 2014



$7,089 per enrollee just to access the web site and process the
appl i cation, she said.

1: 36: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON noted that Ms. Wng-Heier said that the
State of Alaska spends over $10,000 and wites a check to
sonmeone for each enrollee into the federal exchange.

M5. WNG HElI ER said no. "W joined the federal exchange, the
federal governnment is spending $12,890 ... priced out over al
of the applicants or all the enrollees,” and it is an average
for Al aska's share.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if that is the federal subsidy.

M5. WNG HEIER said no. "This is just the cost for you or | to
go to the website and enroll through healthcare.gov to obtain

i nsurance. " She said she will find the source of that data for
him She continued and said that several states started down
the path of the federal exchange grants, including Gkl ahons,

Loui si ana, Kansas, Maine, and Wsconsin, and they returned the
funding when they started to |look at what the costs would be to
build a state-based exchange. She said the states of Oregon and
Nevada failed m serably. Oregon spent $350 nillion and Nevada
spent $75 mllion for their exchanges in 2014, and they are
joining the federal exchange in 2015. The costs are high, so
states are looking to partner with each other and searching for
a nore econonmical way for people to access healthcare, she said.
Wth a small state |like Alaska, there is no way to provide the
software and the conm tnment w thout the grant noney running out,
| eaving the state to deal with the financial burden

1: 39: 12 PM

M5. WNGHEIER said she has heard about the Effective Rate
Review and what that neans. Hi storically, the oversight of
insurance rates has been a state responsibility, and ACA
established a role for HHS [U. S. Departnent of Health and Human
Services] by requiring that the secretary establish a process
for the annual review of unreasonable rate increases in the
individual and small group nmarket. [ Alaska] rates were
subnmitted to HSS on Septenber 4, and she said she had one
conversation with HSS and "they have yet to question the data
that was submtted to them or the need for the rate increase.”
She said that HSS wll also determne if a state has an
effective rate review, and she questioned what that is. She

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- Oct ober 7, 2014



showed a slide of the states that were granted an effective rate
review status, and "we, along with 45 other states, were
approved by HHS as an effective rate review" The process
entails very detailed information wunder federal and state
statutes, and "we try to point out the types of data that are
submtted to wus and reviewed to determne if a rate is
justified,"” she expl ai ned. Much |ike the exchange, the federa
governnent released grants to fund states to becone effective
rate review states, she added, and Al aska has been criticized
for not accepting [these grants]. She said, "Cycle | provided
$1 mllion to the states to help develop or enhance a rate
review process that we have already been certified as effective
rate review by HHS. "

1:41: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if she is speaking of a review of
effective rates or is it the systemthat is effective.

M5. WNG HEI ER said that the intent is to determine if "our rate
review process is effective and over any qualification that HHS
statutory obligation or any of their processes to determ ne the
rate to be charged to Al aska consuners."”

1:42:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said Susan Johnson, U.S. Departnent of
Heal t h and Human Servi ces, gave hi m sonething that reads:

Al though Alaska neets the effective rate review
standards, it does not go beyond the m ni num standards
in terms of their rate review process and transparency
of rate review data. For exanple, Al aska does not
have public hearings on rates; they post mninal
information in a forminaccessible to consuners.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said that Ms. Johnson cites the Kaiser
Foundati on who says that Alaska is one of the |east transparent
states in terms of making rate review available. "Is it
possi ble that we're conplying with this mninmm standard but not
doing all that we could to help consuners?"

M5. WNG HEIER said, "No, sir, | believe we are going above the
standard.” In Alaska the concern with the transparency is that
there is a statute that requires rates to be kept confidential
until the effective date. "I cannot, by statute, release the
rates wuntil January 1." The statute was intended to keep

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- Cct ober 7, 2014



insurers from knowing what their conpetition was bidding to
enabl e fair conpetition, she said.

1:43:53 PM

M5. WNG HEIER said there was the $250 mllion over five years
awarded for effective rate review grants. “In Alaska, we felt
that there was adequate staffing; we thought we only qualified
and we believe we only qualified for Cycle I," she said, because
one of the criteria for Cycle Il "is that you're trying to be an
effective rate review-we already achieved that status."™ There

are only eight healthcare insurers in Al aska, she expl ained, and
sonme states have 20 to 60 insurers, so it was not clear how
Al aska could spend a mllion dollars of federal noney to enhance
a process that had been working for years, she stated. She
conti nued:

Wien we have taken criticism for the effective rate
review, we're taking it on the individual nmarket,
because there are sonme significant rate increases--|
don't deny that; | can't, but no one tal ks about that
we use the sane rate review, the sane processes, for
the group market, and that the snmall group went down
17 percent on the average for Mda and a slight
increase of a little over 5 percent for Prenera, and
it's the sane process we use; the sanme type of data
the sane qualifiers.

1:45: 25 PM

CHAIR OLSON recalled that Ms. Wng-Heier said that the top two
conpanies were witing 75 percent of the prem uns.

M5. WNG HEI ER said, yes, Prenera and Mbda. She continued and
said that the determ nation to accept funding under Cycle Il was
that the state had to be working towards being an effective rate
review state, but Alaska had already qualified, so "we did not
qualify to receive Cycle Il grants.” She noted that there was
$159 mllion awarded, and $14 mllion was returned as the states
could not justify how to spend the noney. Ms. Wng-Heier said
that the Division of Insurance does not set premum rates;
insurers file their rates and the division approves or
di sapproves them and rates are defined by statute and cannot be
excessive, based on historical data. The rates cannot be
i nadequate, "we have to guarantee the solvency of the insurance
conpani es,” she said, and they cannot unfairly discrimnate or

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- Cct ober 7, 2014



be applied unfairly for simlar risks, such as age, plan, or
t obacco use.

1:47:24 PM

M5. WNG HEI ER noted that in 2014, when ACA cane about, there
was specul ation across the nation as to what the pool would | ook
like. She said there were assunptions that those who were nost
in need of insurance would enroll the first year, and those who

are not in need of healthcare right now have yet to enroll. In
2014, there was significance |oss. By reviewing the data, she
found that sonme of it is pent up demand and that there are sone
very ill individuals who have needed healthcare. In certain
mont hs, the division |ooks at loss ratios of the prem uns com ng
in over the clains going out. In some nmonths the insurers were

payi ng out over $2.50 in clains for every $1.00 they were taking
in for premuns, and they cannot stay in business |ong paying
out that kind of nobney, she stated. She said that the ACA has
10 essential benefits, and those going forward in 2014 have the
benefits w thout any option "to roll in or roll out.” Per haps
soneone does not want prescription or pediatric service, for
exanpl e, but the plan provides for them she said.

1:49: 46 PM

M5. WNG HEIER turned to the "nedical loss ratio.” She said
that this appears to be a good thing for consuners, "and perhaps
it is.” In 2014, Prenera issued checks back to consuners for
$2.6 mllion for their 2013 [indeci pherable]. For all insurers,
the nedical loss ratio is "if they, basically, guess wong on
what they expect their clains were ... then the noney is given
back to the consunmers, which is a great thing on a good year."
She opined that it is unfortunate that the insurance conpanies
cannot keep the noney to spread it out over the bad years. She
said if the conpanies guess too high on what their |osses wll
be, the noney cones back to the consuners, but that does not
allow them to build up surplus noney to pay future clains, and
that causes a rate increase. She turned to slide 25 dealing
with risk adjustnent, risk corridor, and reinsurance, which are
part of the ACA, and the intent was to stabilize the narket

particularly for the first tw years. The risk adjustnent
transfers noney anongst the insurers to adjust for the
possibility that sone insurers nay get nore or less of their
proportionate share of costly enrollees, she said. She defined
rei nsurance as insurance for the insurance conpanies. In 2014,
she said, "it attached to a claim at $45,000, but, | believe

for the first $250,000 after that there was an 80 percent co-

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- Cct ober 7, 2014



i nsurance. " She said it increases in 2015 and again in 2016

and it is done in 2017. The risk corridor, she explained, is
much |like the nedical loss ratio, and it allows the governnent
to claw back some of the premiuns if the expected |osses are
| oner than what the insurer predicted. The programw || operate
for three years, and her concern is that |ast week the GAO
[federal Government Accountability Ofice] released a |egal

opinion that the law was not funding for 2015 unless Congress
passes a clarification.

1: 52: 29 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked why it is only for three years.
1:52: 53 PM

M5. WNG HEIER said that she has no clue, but she believes the
intent was for things to stabilize, and at sone point we would
know exactly what was out there and the rates would be adequate
for the popul ation served.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if it was not to deal with the pent
up denmand.

M5. WNG HEIER said it could have been to deal with the pent up
demand and to see what the pool would be. Everyone knew t hat
there were uninsured people and people needing healthcare, but
there was no way to quantify the nunber and the pool with regard
to heal thcare costs.

CHAIR OLSON asked if it was witten by the insurance conpanies.

M5. WNG HEIER said it was witten into ACA. She continued. In
Septenber 2014, Secretary Sylvia Burwell wote that while
conpetition is working in the online marketplace, it may not
work as efficiently in a high-cost market wth a small
popul ati on such as Alaska. That is the point Ms. Wng-Heier has
been trying to push since the onset of the ACA: the concerns of
a one-size-fits-all option to provide healthcare, wthout her
division being able to be creative or think outside the box

which it is making it costly to consuners.

1:54: 50 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked what she neant by one size fits

all, and if that is the state perspective, not the consuner,
because consuners have sone choi ces.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- Oct ober 7, 2014



M5. WNG HEIER said the consumer can choose a gold, platinum
silver, or a bronze plan, and the consuner can choose the
insurer. There are variations in the deductible "and such," but
the health benefits are one size fits all.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said that sone states with snall

popul ations, |ike Arkansas, saw a reduction of 2 percent and
Montana's increase was only 1.35 percent. "Are we just an
outlier?"

M5. WNGHEIER said part of the <concern is the cost of
heal t hcare, which is one of the highest in the nation and higher
than healthcare in Arkansas. She said, "W're in a dilema."
Al aska healthcare is one of the costliest in the nation. The
ACA has limted options for the products for the Al aska
consuners, she added. She said the wunderwiting has been
restrictive, and she has heard from people from all wal ks of
l[ife that there is a problemwith the ACA in Al aska

1: 58: 19 PM

M5. WNG HEIER said her mssion is to protect Al aska consuners
and provide them with products that are financially secure and
to make sure the providers are stable and accountable. She
added that nothing in ACA is affordable, and the division is
doing everything in its power to make heal t hcare affordabl e.

1:59: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER turned to slide 27, and he asked if the
rates of increase are annual .

M5. WNG HEI ER said the slide shows the average rates, filed by
t he insurance conpanies, of individual states for the individual
market. It is the average rate of the individual markets, so it
is the expected change in healthcare expenses.

1: 59: 52 PM

CHAIR OLSON said the original nunbers he saw for Al aska were
closer to 70 percent on certain types of groups.

M5. WNG HEIER said there was never a filing for a 70 percent
rate increase. Wen the division first nmet wth Premnera,
Premera indicated that it would be 70 percent, but because of
its relationship in the state, their financial solvency and

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- Oct ober 7, 2014



stability, "we could see that they could provide a product in

2015 [with] less than a 70 percent increase and still be around
in 2016." She said she does not know what Prenera's testinony
will be, but its rates filed with the division show the

expectation of a $5 million | oss next year.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked about the 2015 rates of plus 22
percent and plus 40 percent on slide 28.

M5. WNG HEIER said, "22 percent would the low end of one, to
the high end of the other, [and] all the plans in between."

2:02: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON noted that Ms. Johnson said that the
state average prem um increase was 17 percent between 2008 and
2011, so that is less than even our |ower end, but M. Johnson
notes that Premera had the largest increase of 32 percent in
2008, which would be near the mddle of those nunbers. Although
none of this is good news, is it possible there could be sone
| eveling, he asked, and if it is wildly inconsistent.

M5. WNG HElI ER said she hopes that there is sone |leveling and
that the rates stabilize in three to five years, but she does
not knowif it will level out.

2:04: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said he has an interest in the coverage
of young people with disabilities. He spoke of an exenption,
and he asked how many in Alaska do not have coverage of nental
heal t hcare servi ces.

M5. WNG HEI ER said she will get back to himon that.

BECKY HULTBERG President and CEO, Alaska State Hospital and
Nursi ng Home Association (ASHNHA), said the nmenbers of ASHNHA

include hospitals and nursing hones across the state. As
heal thcare providers, the nmenbers know the inportance of
heal t hcare insurance, because an acci dent or unexpect ed
di agnosis can tilt sonmeone's world, and for soneone wthout
health insurance the consequences can be devastating. A
functioning private insurance nmarket is critical to providing
Al askans access to health insurance, she said. Not everyone

chooses to be enployed, she explained, and private insurance is
a necessity, not a luxury, for those who are self-enployed or
those with enployers who do not offer health insurance. Havi ng

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- Cct ober 7, 2014



a functioning private insurance market is essential to Al aska's
econony, she added.

M5. HULTBERG said, "W need entrepreneurs and we need risk
takers,"” but wthout affordable health insurance this nmay be too
much of a risk for people. Prior to the ACA, insurers could
deny coverage based on pre-existing conditions, and this
coverage is one of the nobst popular aspects of the ACA, she
expl ai ned. "W're not likely, nor should we, return to a tine
where you could be denied coverage due to the genetic lottery or
unfortunate circunstances,”" she stated, but the provision has
changed the risk pool. She noted that in a small market, it is
hard to spread risk unless prem uns increase. She spoke of
ASHNHA' s concern about the premum increases in the private
mar ket for 2015 and that the dial ogue has not been as nuch about
finding solutions as it has been about pointing fingers. She
encouraged the state, the federal governnent, and private
insurers to sit down and discuss how to nove this forward to a
sustai nabl e future. The state needs to think big, she said

Al aska is unique and here is an opportunity to denonstrate that
we can find unique solutions to our unique problens. She asked
the federal governnent to consider the flexibility and
i nnovation that may be necessary to neet the health insurance
needs of Al askans. The problem is solvable if everyone works
together--it is a math equation, she said, and people need to
step out of their boxes and think differently.

2:07: 40 PM

CHAIR OLSON said that when ACA was rolled out, one of the
appeal i ng points was taking pressure off of the energency roons,
because primary care would no |onger be dealt with in energency
roons. He asked if that inpact is already occurring.

M5. HULTBERG said, "Not really."”™ Medicaid expansion is what has
really changed that, so for states that have expanded Medi caid,
unconpensated care costs have gone down significantly. The
vol une of new Al aska entrants to the exchange is not sufficient
enough to see any difference in the use of energency roons or
unconpensat ed care, she expl ai ned.

2:08: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD asked her to describe the risk pool
Al aska had prior to the ACA

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- Oct ober 7, 2014



M5. HULTBERG said she is not going to claim expertise on
i nsurance, but she believes that Al aska has had a high risk pool

t hr ough ACHI A (Al aska Conpr ehensi ve Heal t h | nsur ance
Associ ation), and sone of the people who were in that high risk
pool have transferred to the individual nmarket. It is a matter

of nunbers. Alaska has a small pool, and in spreading risk over
a small pool "you can see these kinds of sw ngs," she expl ai ned.

2: 09: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT said she is confused by M. Hultberg's
testinmony, and she asked if ASHNHA is in favor of Medicaid
expansi on.

M5. HULTBERG said yes, but her point today is the concern about
the private insurance market and the inportance in having it in
Alaska to provide access to insurance and for the health of
Al aska's econony. She added that ASHNHA is asking that
creativity and flexibility be brought to the table.

2:10: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked about any |inkage between the
states that have taken Medicai d expansi on and cost i ncreases.

M5. HULTBERG said she does not know, but the primary published
metric involves unconpensated care, and as unconpensated care
goes down, the financial performance and the ability of
heal t hcare providers to provide services is enhanced.

2:11: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked why ASHNHA supports Medicaid
expansion and if the physicians are taking Medicaid.

M5. HULTBERG said that for many of ASHNHA' s nenber facilities,
Medi caid expansion is a noral obligation. "W believe that
peopl e have the right to healthcare,” she stated. There is a
popul ation of people with no way to purchase health insurance--
it is sinply beyond their reach, she expl ai ned. She said that
the nost fiscally responsible way to ensure healthcare coverage
for that population is through accessing federal f unds.
Regarding the second questions, she noted that some of the
menber hospitals enpl oy physicians and sonme do not, so it really
depends on the facility.

2:12: 28 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- Oct ober 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked Ms. Hultberg the basis for her
statenent that people have a right to healthcare. "I's that the
state or federal constitutions, or any state | aw?"

M5. HULTBERG answered that this country has nade the decision
with the Emergency Medical Treatnent and Active Labor Act that

one of the things the people of the United States w |l provide
is energency nedical care regardless of a person's ability to
pay. The organization has many people with mny different

opinions, but it is fair to say that many of the nenbers do
believe that as a society, healthcare is one of those basic,
fundamental responsibilities.

REPRESENTATI VE = SADDLER asked about the Energency Medica
Treatment and Active Labor Act.

2:13:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT asked how many providers of ASHNHA are
accepting Medicaid at this point.

M5. HULTBERG said all of the hospitals take Medicaid, and she
assunes that the physicians who are enployed by the hospitals
t ake Medi cai d.

2:14:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD spoke of governnent debt and questioned
this noral obligation [regarding providing healthcare to
ot hers]. She said there are "famlies that want to be able to
support their own famlies--the people they've chosen.” Wth
regard to spending federal dollars, there is a |arge debt to pay
back right now, so the "bottom line is why should people, when
we have such a high debt, be forced to pay nore taxes in order
to take care of others when it's not a sustainable nodel?" She
asked where these federal dollars are going to cone from

M5. HULTBERG said these dollars will be spent regardless of
whether "the little bit that we would spend in Al aska on
Medi cai d expansion is part of the equation or not." The funds
are already factored into those long-term projections, she
expl ai ned.

2:15: 42 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- Cct ober 7, 2014



SHEELA TALLMAN, Seni or Manager, Legislative Policy, Prenera Bl ue
Cross, said Prenera provides coverage to over 100,000 Al aska
resi dents, and it offers ~coverage to individuals, smal

enpl oyers, and large enployers, as well as offering services to

the |arger self-funded groups. She said that Prenmera received
approval for a 37.3 percent average rate increase for its
nmetallic Affordable Care Act conpliant plan. The actual rate
increase that an individual mght face wll depend on age,
geography, and the plan selected, she noted. The plans are
offered both on and off of the exchange and wll inpact
approximately 7,000 nenbers starting January, 2015, and
subsidies will help the |ower incone individuals. The 6, 000
peopl e on individual plans are nmenbers who will not be inpacted,

she expl ai ned. Addi tionally, those who obtain coverage through
enpl oyer - sponsored plans are not inpacted by the rate increase.

M5. TALLMAN said the individual market in Alaska has changed
significantly since the inplenentation of ACA, guaranteed access
means that all Alaskans have access to private healthcare
coverage regardless of health status. The high risk pool, or
ACHI A program has decreased its enrollnent by over half since
the beginning of this year, she said. Additionally, the federal
high risk pool, which ACH A has admnistered, has al so
[indiscernible], so those provided coverage to some very sick
i ndi vi dual s who could not obtain coverage in the private market.

M5. TALLMAN said the guaranteed access requirenent coupled with
the small size of +the Alaska market has resulted in an
unsust ai nabl e mar ket . There are not enough healthy purchasers
in the individual market to offset the costs of nenbers wth
very high nedical needs. She said that in 2014 there was a
significant influx of new enrollees wth very high nedical
costs. "W had nore than $7 mllion in clains from just 33
menbers, and that is about a third of all the clains for al

7,000 nenbers purchasing those netallic, individual plans,” she
stated. On average, Prenera is paying about $723 in clains per
month for nmenbers on this plan and receiving about $500 per
month in prem uns. She said Prenera expects to |ose about $4
mllion in the market in 2014. The federal "Three Rs" or the
federal risk mtigation prograns, were designed to mninize the

effects of adverse selection in the guaranteed access
envi ronnent . They are insufficient at the very high end of the
claims cost and will not be able to help spread the risk in a
mar ket that is too small, she noted. Additionally, two of the

prograns will sunset in 2016.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- Oct ober 7, 2014



M5. TALLMAN stated that the key to addressing this situation is
to create a | arge enough pool to spread the costs of the nenbers

with significant nedical needs. Even if all of the individua
markets were in one pool and everyone purchased coverage, the
market in Alaska is still too small to adequately spread the
ri sk, she added. Prenmera suggested a policy option, which is

the inplenmentation of a supplenental state-based free insurance
program which would use the state's current high risk pool,
ACHI A, to spread the highest cost conditions across the entire
i nsured market, she said, which is how the high risk pool works

t oday. "W Dbelieve this wll help stabilize the individual
mar ket for all i ndi vi dual purchasers and create a nore
conpetitive market wthout drastic swings and premuns.” She

said Prenera understands that the Division of Insurance is
evaluating this proposal and that this is a difficult situation,
especially for the inpacted nenbers, "so we are conmtted to
working with you and other stakeholders to create a sustainable
mar ket in Al aska," she concl uded.

2:20: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked about the supplenental insurance
program based on ACHI A

M5. TALLMAN said it would be a state-based solution, and the
idea is to build it as a wap-around to the federal re-insurance
pr ogr am An individual would sign up for coverage with any
health plan, obtaining all of +the benefits and access to
providers, and on the back end--much |ike how the federal re-
i nsurance program works--is that once an individual hits a
certain amount of medical clains costs, then those clains would
be ceded to the high risk pool and spread across the entire
i nsured market through the existing assessnents that ACH A uses
today to spread the costs of the enrollees. She said there are
different ways of establishing a state-based re-insurance
program |ike condition-based or a clains dollar anmount, but the
essential concept is that certain clains costs would be spread
across the entire insured market.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER surm sed that those higher costs would be
borne by the state.

M5. TALLMAN agreed. "Those costs would be spread just |ike how

ACHIA is funded today through an assessnent of the entire
insured market; it would function the sane way," she said.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- Cct ober 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said that would be to the benefit of the
patient and the insurance conpanies, but the state woul d pay.

M5. TALLMAN said, "It would conme at the cost of those purchasing
i nsurance, actually, because it is an assessnent that's spread
across the entire insured market, so anybody that's in the
i ndi vi dual and group market woul d pay that assessnent."”

2:22: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said there is sone dispute about how
many woul d be covered with Medicaid expansion; the | ow nunber is
around 9,000 and the high nunber is 41,000--a huge difference.
But if there were Medicaid expansion, he asked, "would any of
those dollars translate or effectuate thenselves such that Mda
and Prenera could neet this demand?" He referred to the $700 in
clains paid versus the $500 in premunms, and asked if Medicaid
would fix that difference by |owering the unconpensated care.

IVS. TALLMAN answered that would require sone additional
anal ysis, but she said she is addressing the individual market
today, and those eligible for Medicaid expansion can go into the
i ndi vidual narket to get coverage and get subsidies, but they
are eligible for separate progranms, so she is not sure what
i npact Medi cai d expansi on woul d be on the private market.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked about the rates that are set by
Prenera and Moda, which may be based partly on the incone of the
two main Al aska hospitals. "Whuld it seem logical to you that
if, according to the high end, there was $1.1 billion of revenue
that cane in covering 41,000 people, that that would trickle
down and benefit some of the people in the individual market by
suppressing inflation?"

M5. TALLMAN said she understands his point, but it would stil
be difficult to answer w thout doing additional analyses.

2:25:02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if the $4 mllion was across all
business lines or just across those 7,000 outside of the plan
"I's that your total loss for the state, or is that just wthin
t hose individual plans?"

M5. TALLMAN said the loss is just for that individual nmarket.

Premera just evaluates based on each segnent, |ooking at the
i ndi vi dual bl ock and ot her conponents separately.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- Cct ober 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said, "W're looking at the state as a
whol e, and the state pays an awful |ot of insurance being self-
insured, and we provide a certain margin in that, so |I would be
curious to know across your total lines if that $4 nmllion holds
true or if we're really not that bad of a market to be in."

2:26: 11 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked if there any other states that are doing the
suppl enental rate insurance.

M5. TALLMAN said Oregon has passed a law that would establish
their supplenental state re-insurance program and a couple
ot her states mght be looking into it.

CHAIR OLSON asked if it is a violation of ACA to have a cap on
benefits. He spoke of totally debilitating |ong-term cancer
with drugs costing $70,000 a nonth, "but it wouldn't be capped
under ACA, is that correct?”

M5. TALLMAN said yes, so under a supplenental program the

menber would still receive all of those benefits w thout any cap
or limts, "it's just on the back end with how the clains costs
are being spread. You would set sone sort of attachnent and

build paranmeters to help spread the risk of the clainms cost on
t he back end.™

CHAIR OLSON asked if it would be optional or nmandatory to
partici pate.

M5. TALLMAN said it would depend on how it is designed, but it
could be perm ssible for any insurer to participate.

CHAI R OLSON asked who pays for it.

M5. TALLMAN reiterated that it would be based on how the current
high risk pool works today, which 1is funded through an
assessnment on the entire insured market. The idea would be to
not increase the assessnent going forward, but there are
di fferent ways of designing it, she explai ned.

2:28:52 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked what the assessnment has been.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- Cct ober 7, 2014



M5. TALLMAN said she believes that it has fluctuated over the
past few years, but the average is between $8 nillion to $10
mllion annually. From Prenera's perspective, the assessnent
has ranged from about $8 to $10 per nenber per nonth.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how the projections of the costs to
private insurers of no |onger having exclusions of pre-existing
conditions conpare to actual costs of the past year.

M5. TALLMAN said, "If we're paying $723 in clains per nenber per
nonth conpared to $540 in premunms in 2013, and probably prior
years it's been nuch closer to the prem um anmount that we've
been col lecting.”

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked about the projections.

M5. TALLMAN said she does not know, but Prenera anticipated a
ot nore people and potentially healthier people purchasing in
the pool overall, and so it has set the rates in 2014 based on
that. "Now we're | ooking at rates based on the actual experience
that we're seeing."”

2:30:23 PM

JASON GOOTEE, Regional WManager, Mda Health, Alaska, said his
supervisor flew to Juneau specifically for this hearing.

KRAI G ANDERSON, Senior Vice President and Chief Actuary, Mda
Heal th, said Moda Health was known as ODS Health Plans Inc. and
was a Delta Dental Plan in 1955. It is the only "Delta Dental"

t hat does nedical insurance, he noted. In the m d-2000s, Moda
took over marketing rights for Delta Dental in Alaska, and
between 2005 and 2007, "we rolled out individual and group
dental and nedical products in Al aska." Moda established an

office in Anchorage in 2005, which serves as a sales office and
account services, and in 2013, ODS rebranded to Moda. Wth the
passage of health reform in 2010, there were significant market
reforns, and perhaps the nost significant was the inpact to the
i ndi vi dual market by the requirenent of guaranteed issue and the

exclusion of health statement underwiting. Prior to 2014, in
order to get individual coverage in Al aska, a person had to go
to an insurance conpany, fill out an application wth health

statenent information, and the insurance conpany could either
accept or decline himor her for that coverage. Another option,
he said, was that the insurance conpany could actually rate up
the policy depending on a person's health condition (but that
was not a practice of Mdda). "So that was the environnent

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- Oct ober 7, 2014



before healthcare reform"™ he stated, and that was why the
private individual market was healthier than average and had
| ower costs.

CHAI R OLSON asked about lifestyle choices, |ike snoking.

MR. ANDERSON said those people were not declined by Mda, but
t hey may have had hi gher prem uns.

2:35:26 PM

MR. ANDERSON said in June, 2012, a conpany called Lewis and
Ellis did an actuarial analysis of the exchange and it factored
in the inpacts that healthcare would have on Al aska. The report
had sonme interesting insights that relate to the individual
market, he stated. It noted three factors of health reformthat
would increase rates in the individual narket: elimnating age
bans; health status and guaranteed issue restrictions; and
m ni mum benefit coverage. However, he said, the primary factor
is the health status and guaranteed issue restriction. He
explained that the primary goal of health reform was the
expansi on of coverage to the uninsured, and that was to be done
t hrough the exchanges. The federal government set up a program
to allow for subsidized premuns for people who earn up to 400
percent of the poverty level as long as they purchased a policy
on an exchange.

MR ANDERSON said that Lewis and Elis estimted that the

average cost of those who are currently uninsured s
approximately 36% higher than the existing population in the
private individual market. He reiterated that the private

i ndi vi dual rmarket, which was health statenent underwitten and
heal thier on average, and the study "looked at the uninsured
people that are out there in Alaska and estimated they woul d be
36 percent higher in costs, and those are the people that
they're trying to nove in to the market." Al t hough Lewi s and
Ellis said that the average cost was 36 percent higher, they did
not know how many of the uninsured would actually go into the
private market even with the subsidies, he added. In 2013, the
uninsured population in Alaska was estimated to be about
138, 000. The study estimated that 54,000 of these uninsured
woul d nove into the private market, but only 16,000 people ended
up being on the exchange--a very small slice of a very |arge
pi e. He said that that this small group of people who actually
picked up policies in the exchanges are the ones wth the
hi ghest heal t hcare costs.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- Oct ober 7, 2014



2:39: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said the director talked about nmaybe
finding 6,000 nore [people to get policies in the exchanges].

MR. ANDERSON said the Lewis and Ellis report was done in 2012
so it gave a very prelimnary estimte of possibly 54,000 people
noving into the market. He said he thinks 22,000 is a nore
current estimate of the nunber of people expected to nove into
t he exchange market.

CHAIR OLSON stated that of the 138,000, there is probably a
significant portion that are already covered, and he spoke of
Nat i ve Al askans.

MR. ANDERSON said that is possible.

CHAI R OLSON suggested that Native Al askans and young mnales are
not signing up as projected. Young males think they are "bonb
proof,"” he explained. Many of his daughters' friends do not
have i nsurance but could; "a lot of them wrk on the North Sl ope
or have the incone..."

MR. ANDERSON agreed; nany of the wuninsured are young and
heal t hy.

2:41: 54 PM

REPRESENTATIVE M LLETT asked if he included people who had
health benefits under the Indian Health Service as uni nsured.

MR. ANDERSON said he did not know.
2:42: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked who conmmissioned the Lewis and
Ellis study.

MR. ANDERSON sai d he cannot recall who comm ssioned it.
REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD said that a very valid source told her
that 26,000 of these people were working age, childless adults
who had the ability to work.

MR. ANDERSON said, "Wen | hear the term childless adult, what

conmes to mind to ne are those who would have fallen in the gap
of Medi caid expansion. That's what's comng to mnd for ne."

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- Cct ober 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD said the "26,000 people were adults that
were conpletely capable of working, did not get Mdicaid because
they didn't have children, but it was this uncovered popul ation,
speaki ng of possibly these young nen that are running around,
you know, that feel like they're invincible. So, | just want
you to address that." These are people who are not interested
in taking out a plan at this tinme, she added.

MR. ANDERSON said he believes they would be included if they are
not receiving insurance coverage. The 26,000 childless adults
who do not have coverage would be within the 138,000 nunber that
he referenced earlier.

2:44:53 PM

MR. ANDERSON noted the additional conplication when, in 2013
people were allowed to keep the coverage that they had. But
t hat popul ation who extended their health plans from 2013 to
2014 tended to be healthier and did not enter the ACA risk poo

ei t her. So these conbined factors have resulted in a higher
than average risk profile for the ACA than what was predicted,
he st at ed. | nsurance conpanies have to price its products to

the average market risk, and he said the Wkely Consulting
[ Goup] provides that information to Mda and other insurance
compani es. Based on their information, WMda found that the
average norbidity of the entire Al aska narketplace was 26
percent higher than what was in Mda' s own pool of people, he
noted, and this was the main contributing factor to Mdda's rate
i ncrease.

VR. ANDERSON stat ed t hat wi t hout i nsurance conpani es
participating in the exchanges, it would not work. There is no
mandate for the insurance conpanies to join, and going into
2014, there were a nunber of national carriers who "sat it out
in sone nmarkets." In Alaska, for the exchange to stay
conpetitive there needs to be nore than one option, "and for us
to remain an option, we had to raise our rates going into 2015."
He said Mda has |ooked at 2014 financial nodeling and it

i ndicates a | oss. A big source of the loss is the transfer
paynent, he said, which is one of the Three Rs (or a risk
adj ust rent conponent), where Mda wll be making a paynent to

ot her insurance carriers because Mda has better than average
risk in its popul ation.

2:49: 22 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- Oct ober 7, 2014



MR. ANDERSON explained that there are three risk mnitigation
prograns as nentioned earlier: reinsurance, risk adjustnment, and
risk corridors. The risk adjustnent program is permanent, and
it transfers noney between insurance conpanies to average out
the risk. It is designed so that insurance conpanies do not try
to mani pulate their risk pools. The average risk of the market
is much higher than Mda's market, so Moda will have a transfer
paynent at the end of the year, he clarified. It is a zero-sum
gane, however, because there is no funding source for risk
adjustnment outside of the premium that is collected by the
market--it is just nmoving that premum between carriers and it
is done on a retrospective basis, he added.

2:50: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD asked if the projected loss has to do
with risk or does it also have to do with an increase in the
nunber of Moda enpl oyees, bonuses, sal ari es, or capital
i mprovenents.

MR. ANDERSON said it is primarily a loss due to risk--"there are
no expenses of the nature you nentioned that are in excess of
what was pl anned. "

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD asked if he was anticipating any
decrease in reinbursenents. [M. Anderson answered no. ]

2:52: 18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if Mda believes it will capture
nore enrol |l ees because the penalties on tax returns are going to
escalate and because the [ACA] website is working better.
Nationally there has been an increase of 10 mllion [enrollees],
and he asked if any study suggests that there wll be
i nprovenent in small states |ike Al aska.

MR. ANDERSON said he believes that the 8 mllion to 10 mllion
represents only private insurance and does not include Medicaid
expansi on. H s question is really the heart of the matter and
the concern that Mda has. "W would anticipate nore of the
insured,” he said. He said there were difficulties in getting
people enrolled in time and there should be nore enrollnent.
The concern is that with insurance conpanies raising their rates
as much as they have, on average, there may be people dropping
cover age.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- Cct ober 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE = JOSEPHSON  asked, "Why s Moda' s | ow end
anticipated increase 22 percent and Prenera's high end 40
percent ?"

MR. ANDERSON said he does not know how the two ended up wth
different increases; this process is confidential so he does not
know what other carriers are doing in the nmarketpl ace.

2:55: 02 PM

MR. ANDERSON stated that MODA is conmtted to the individual
market in Alaska, but he is concerned that the increases
necessitated by the worsening risk pool wll make it nore
difficult for those who are uninsured to purchase policies and
for those who are currently insured, to maintain those policies.
The intent is to work with the Division of Insurance to cone up
with ideas and to provide assistance to ensure the long-term
viability of the individual market, he concl uded.

2:55: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked what Mdda is working on with the
Di vi si on of | nsurance.

MR. ANDERSON said he has not had those discussions yet. In
Oregon, there is a technical advisory group, which is hosted by
the insurance division and brings in the carriers to work
together on issues like this. One issue is the supplenental re-
i nsurance program and it is already in place. |Ildeas may result
in legislation that the technical group can help draft, he said.
Secondly, the pool can be expanded by putting in all the people
who are in the individual market and potentially expand the pool
to those that are uninsured who may qualify for significant
subsidies so that they do not have a lot of out-of-pocket
expense to get insurance, he stated. There are a nunber of
Al askans in the wuninsured population, and naybe Al aska could
| ook at merging the individual and small group markets at sone
poi nt .

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER noted that Ms. Hultberg said this is a
mat h problem so [indiscernible].

2:58:41 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked if Prenmera and Mbda can talk w thout having
the Division of Insurance in the room

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- Cct ober 7, 2014



MR. ANDERSON said Mdda does neet with other insurance conpanies
but is bound by restrictions on what can be discussed. "“I'n
concept we could talk about a program as long as it wasn't
related to how rates were devel oped.”

2:59: 45 PM

VINCE O SHEA, Vice President, Pacific Seafood Processors
Association (PSPA), said PSPA is a trade association with nine
menbers conpanies that operate in Alaska, and seven of those
operate shore-based plants, buying and processing fish. The
conpani es enpl oy tens of thousands of people and provide narkets
to Alaska fishernen. Because of ACA, insurance expenses are
rising. He remnded the commttee that the nenbers of PSPA "are
not price makers in the markets that we sell to." He said that
70 percent of Al aska seafood goes into the global market, and
PSPA produces |ess than one percent of the supply. "So for us
to go to our custonmers and say our expenses have gone up, sinply
means they will go to sonebody else that will neet the price
that they're willing to offer."” He said that includes factory
traw ers, which are not covered by the sane rules that PSPA
oper at es under. | f labor costs go up, his nmenbers nust | ook at
new ways to reduce costs, and that will include a reduction in
enpl oyees through automation and through exporting work
over seas. He noted that Alaska is already sending $1.4 billion
a year worth of seafood to China, South Korea, and Southeast
Asia, which then gets shipped to other markets including the
United States. He said PSPA nenbers want their workers to have
health insurance, "but we also need, at the end of the day, to
be able to produce fish at a price that we're able to sell for
nore than what it costs us to produce the fish."

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER surmsed that M. O Shea's nessage is
that there is a national desire to provide health insurance, but
it mght be pricing your products out of the market.

MR. O SHEA said health insurance alone will not put his nenbers
out of the market, but it will add to the burden of conpeting on
t he gl obal narket.

3:04: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT asked about i nsurance for seasona
wor ker s.

MR. O SHEA said it depends on the conpany, but under the ACA
there wll be standards, and sonme of their workers are

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -27- Oct ober 7, 2014



benefitting fromthe program He said there will be w nners and
| osers. At |east one of the companies in PSPA is covered by a
uni on contract, so that goes into the equation, he added.

3:05:48 PM

BILL STREUR, Comm ssioner, Alaska Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS), noted that the commttee heard a |ot of

nunmbers, which seem to be getting a little mxed up. He said
that the figure for the nunber of uninsured, 134,000, is very
close to DHSS s estimate "of about 143,000 at the outside.” He

added that 41,000 is very close to the total nunber of eligible
peopl e under Medicaid expansion, and DHSS has been using the
figure of 9,000 people who would be in the gap--those who woul d
be in need of either chronic or acute nedical care (but it is a
difficult nunber to estimate). A consulting firm estinmated
Al aska's Medicaid expansion to be 44,000, and of those, about
19,000 would be in the gap population, he stated. "Those are
the folks that are under 100 percent of poverty level, largely
childless adults, [and] not necessarily healthy. | want to
clarify that because that 9,000 nunber that we were talKking
about is folks that may have an acute or chronic nedical

condition that prevents them from being able to work." He said
that is where there has been difficulty in |ooking at that gap
popul ation to see what the healthcare needs would be. He

offered to create a table that includes the figures that were
spoken about today.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT asked how many people qualify for Indian
Heal th Services out of the 143,000 uni nsured peopl e.

COWM SSI ONER STREUR sai d he does not have that nunber today, but
"for some reason 40 percent of that sticks in ny mnd." That
woul d be the percentage of those covered under the Indian Health
Services, he clarified.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT asked, "Between the 44,000 and the 9,000
that we're talking about that are uninsured ... have any of
those been identified as being covered under Indian Health
Services or are they just eligible for Medicaid expansion,
whet her or not they qualify for the benefits under Indian Health
Servi ces?"

COWM SSI ONER STREUR said the 44,000 includes tribal nenbers who
woul d be eligible [for Medicaid expansion], and the 9,000 | eaves
out tribal nenbers--"W're talking about folks who we believe
have extrenely limted access to healthcare.™

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 28- Cct ober 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT asked if the state is doing anything to
identify those people who are covered by Indian Health Services,
and getting themin contact with those benefits.

COW SSI ONER STREUR said DHSS and the Indian Health Service are

wor ki ng on that. In the Medicaid population alone, "we have to
do a better job of ensuring that Indian Health Service nenbers
are receiving services within the IHS system"” He added t hat

about 40 percent of the total expenses "we" pay in Medicaid for
tribal nenbers is delivered in the IHS system and 60 percent is
goi ng outside the tribal system

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked about the progress of the Mdicaid
Ref or m Advi sory G oup.

COWM SSI ONER STREUR said the neeting in October may be the | ast
one before giving recommendations to the governor and
| egi sl ature. He added that he believes the report is due in
Novenber .

3:12: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked how the healthcare providers are
doing in the marketpl ace.

COM SSIONER STREUR said the United States has the highest
heal thcare costs in the world, and Alaska is one of the states
with the highest healthcare costs in the country, so "I believe
that the providers are doing well." All of the hospitals
participate in Medicaid and nearly all of the physicians do.
"W have incredible access, but we also pay 140 percent of
Medi care,” he said. Most states pay about 70 percent of
Medi care, "so we're payi ng about double,"” he added.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked if there are enough providers.

COWM SSI ONER STREUR said he cannot answer that with any kind of
authority. He noted that there are challenges with access to
care, and that may be in regards to nedical specialties, like
finding a dermatol ogi st in Southeast Alaska, but because of the
innovations of the tribal partners, the developnent of the
clinics in the rural areas, and the sophistication of the tribal
health centers in rural Al aska, "we do have incredible access
for the amount of road systens we have in this state.”

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 29- Cct ober 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked if Comm ssioner Streur anticipates
a shortage of providers because of the Affordable Care Act.

COW SSI ONER  STREUR said he cannot answer that; however, he
believes that with additional Alaskans getting insured, there
will be a greater need for care.

3:16:15 PM

CHAIR OLSON noted that tonorrow there will be public testinony.
He said he had invited Senators Begi ch and Murkowski today, but
they did not attend.

3:17: 14 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
3:17 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 30- Cct ober 7, 2014



